# FAMILY PLANNING QUEENSLAND AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

A.B.N. 61 009 860 164

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2022

CONTENTS	Page No
Directors' Report	3
Auditor's Independence Declaration	11
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income	12
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	13
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity	14
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	15
Notes to the Financial Statements	16
Directors' Declaration	38
Independent Auditor's Report	39

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

#### **DIRECTORS**

The Directors of Family Planning Queensland (Company), present their report on the consolidated entity (Group), consisting of Family Planning Queensland and the entities it controlled at the end of, and during, the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

The following persons were Directors of Family Planning Queensland during the whole of the financial year and up to the date of this report unless otherwise stated:

- Natalie Bain Chairperson
- Bob Van Beusekom (resigned 1 December 2021)
- Giuseppe Taddeo
- Donna Bonney (resigned 19 July 2022)
- Clare Boothroyd
- Tania Hillman
- Clare Maher
- Christine Ip
- Chris Dougherty (appointed 31 March 2022)
- Shannon Foley (appointed 31 March 2022)
- Tamra Bridges (appointed 31 March 2022)

#### **Company Secretary**

• Charles Robinson

#### **DIRECTORS' AND SECRETARY'S DETAILS**

## Natalie Bain, B Arts, Grad Dip Public Relations, GAICD

Natalie is a stakeholder engagement and communication specialist with broad and significant experience at the state, national and global levels over almost two decades. While currently based in Brisbane, she spent several years living and working in remote and regional Queensland.

Her career to date has predominately focused on building and maintaining respectful dialogue between organisations in the resources sector and host communities. Understanding community needs and priorities and guiding appropriate organisational responses, often working with charities and not-forprofits as delivery partners, is a skillset that Natalie draws on in her work with True. A Graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, Natalie is also a director of Domino's charity, Give for Good.

Special Responsibilities: Chairperson, Member - Governance and Remuneration Committee

## Clare Boothroyd, MB BS (Hons), M Med Sci, MBA (Exec) FRACP, FRANZCOG, CREI, GAICD

Clare Boothroyd completed specialisation internal medicine (endocrinology) and obstetrics and gynaecology. Her current roles include President Elect of the Asia Pacific Initiative in Reproduction (ASPIRE) and President of Australian and New Zealand Society of Specialists in Reproductive Endocrinology and Infertility. She represented the FSA in the recent NHMRC Working Party on the Ethical Practice of Assisted Reproductive Technology and was invited to partake in the review of mitochondrial donation. She is currently the coordinator of the oral examination of the training and accreditation committee of the CREI (reproductive endocrinology and infertility sub-speciality of the Royal Australian and New Zealand College of Obstetricians and Gynaecologists). She established an independently owned IVF unit, Care Fertility of which she is Medical Director. She has been a long-term supporter of True and has volunteered her teaching to the True courses for doctors for many years.

Special Responsibilities: Member - Clinical and Education Advisory Committee

#### Tania Hillman, B.Com. CA, GAICD

Tania is a chartered accountant with over 20 years of commercial experience. Starting her career within public practice before transitioning into commercial accounting, she has extensive experience in tax, international accounting standards, regulatory standards. financial markets and high growth companies.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

She is SVP Finance at Go1, an established leader in online learning and education, and previously a member of the Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand Corporate Advisory Panel.

A strong advocate of lifelong learning, Tania has been fortunate to work with organisations dedicated to helping others through education and is proud to support True.

Special responsibilities: Chairperson - Audit and Finance Committee from 9 December 2021

#### Christine Ip, BE(Chem)(Hons), MBus (Acc), GAICD

Christine is a senior commercial and financial manager with over 20 years of experience in strategy, complex problem solving and value creation across multiple industries in the private and public sectors.

She is a Director in the Client Division of Queensland Treasury Corporation, leading a team of finance and accounting professionals to secure the State's financial success through business optimisation, infrastructure development and financing. Christine is motivated to contribute to the for-purpose sector. She has built an extensive network supporting the development of women in business.

Special responsibilities: Member - Audit and Finance Committee, Member - Governance and Remuneration Committee (to 31 March 2022), Deputy Chairperson from 4 August 2022

#### Clare Maher, FRACGP, Dip O&G, MPH

Clare is a General Practitioner with more than 25 years of experience as a clinician and educator. She currently works at the Inala Indigenous Health Service and at a specialist outreach Diabetes service. Clare is fortunate to have worked with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people for over 15 years and has significant experience in refugee health. Her interests include medical education, evidence-based medicine and women's health. She has been involved with the teaching of medical students and GP registrars for many years.

Since 2016 Clare has been the RACGP Qld Domestic and Family Violence Champion General Practitioner. This involves promoting the role and responsibilities of GPs in the care of people who have experienced IPV.

Special responsibilities: Member - Clinical and Education Advisory Committee

## Giuseppe Taddeo, MBA, Grad Dip Bus Admin, Assoc Dip Diagnostic Radiography

Gus originally qualified as a Radiographer with his business career starting in South Australia as a technical representative for Cook Medical. Over a 26-year career at Cook, he moved through roles in regional and international sales, business development and eventually as the Managing Director for the last 10 years.

Gus has been a board member and Chair of the Medical Industry Association, been on several Industry advisory groups and worked as an executive coach. Gus recently consulted to CSIRO to assist in the commercialisation of digital health initiatives that led to his appointment as National Business Development Manager at HSC Technology Group, an ASX listed provider to the Aged Care sector. Gus is currently General Manager of Housing Services at Churches of Christ Queensland.

Special Responsibilities: Chairperson - Clinical and Education Advisory Committee, Member - Audit and Finance Committee (from 24 January 2022 to 31 March 2022)

#### Chris Dougherty, Bachelor of Business (Human Resources & Accounting)

Chris is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Epilepsy Queensland overseeing the state-wide psychosocial support, education & training, policy, research and advocacy work for the 30,000 Queenslanders who live with the neurological condition. He also serves as Deputy Chair of the Alive Project Ltd, Treasurer and Non-Executive Director for Epilepsy Australia Ltd and an external SME for the People & Performance Committee of the Foodbank Oueensland Ltd Board.

Chris is an accomplished people leader with over 15 years' experience in the health and human services sector in both for profit and profit-for-purpose models. The work of the True has both personal and professional interest to Chris and he is pleased to be able to contribute skills, knowledge and experience to the organisation at this juncture of history.

Special Responsibilities: Member - Audit and Finance Committee (from 31 March 2022)

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

## Shannon Foley, B. Ed (Adult Education), M. Ed (Adult Education), Dip HRM

Shannon is a senior Human Resources leader with a career spanning over two decades. She has worked in Australia and internationally in sectors including healthcare, aged care and community services, aviation and telecommunications. Shannon has extensive experience in employee relations, payroll, organisational capability and development, talent and succession management, safety and wellbeing, diversity and inclusion, change management and culture transformation.

As the Group Executive of People and Capability at Icon Group, she leads a global team providing a range of HR and Corporate Social Responsibility services to over 3000 team members. Icon is Australia's largest dedicated private provider of integrated cancer care offering services in medical and radiation oncology, compounding and hospital pharmacy. Icon lives it mission to deliver the best care possible to as many people as possible, as close to home as possible by providing care to patients in Australia, New Zealand, Hong Kong and Singapore and through its partnerships in China and Vietnam.

Special Responsibilities: Member - Governance and Remuneration Committee (from 31 March 2022)

## Tamra Bridges, RN B. Nursing, M. Mental Health (Psychotherapy), GAICD, MBA (in progress)

Tamra is a clinically trained and registered nurse and psychotherapist and has held executive health roles in both strategy and operations in areas of health, aged care, mental health, culturally safe service models and service design focused on regional and remote locations across Queensland and the Northern Territory.

Tamra has established and led a range of health and community services in a not-for-profit organisation across regional and remote Queensland including residential aged care, residential drug and alcohol treatment centres, residential family therapy facilities, childcare and school programs, community aged care, and state-wide assessment services.

Currently the Executive Director of SilverChain in Queensland, Tamra holds the national portfolio responsible for leadership of the Community Impact and Inclusion strategy.

Special Responsibilities: Member - Clinical and Education Advisory Committee (from 31 March 2022)

## Bob Beusekom, MSc, CA, FCPA, PMP, GAICD

Bob is a chartered accountant, has Masters degrees in both Information Management and Economics and is a member of CPA Australia (fellow), CA Netherlands, Project Management Institute, International Coach Federation and Australian Institute of Company Directors. He has worked in large consulting firms, own enterprises and in executive roles in companies and governments. Bob has lived in several countries such as The Netherlands, China, Costa Rica, Israel and Australia. Next to his working life, Bob has supported the community by volunteering during his travels, for Amsterdam Arts, Aids and Cancer fundraising and gay, lesbian, bisexual and transgender events. These activities focused on supporting interest groups in general and creating liberal and safe environments for minorities in particular.

Special Responsibilities: Chairperson - Audit and Finance Committee (resigned 1 December 2021)

## Donna Bonney, RN, M. Nursing, Grad Cert Education, Grad Cert Emergency Nursing, B. Nursing

Donna has a nursing background and over 30 years of experience as a clinician, educator, manager and leader in both public and private healthcare organisations. As the Executive Director of Mater Education, Donna is a member of the Mater Group Executive and leads a large and diverse team of multidisciplinary education and simulation professionals and is responsible for organisation-wide teaching and learning for almost 10,000 staff. As the head of Mater Education Limited, a leading independent education provider, she is also responsible for the provision of nationally recognised healthcare qualifications and a suite of clinical education and simulation programs for the continuing professional development of the healthcare workforce. Donna holds Adjunct Professor and Associate Professor roles with UQ and ACU respectively, and has undergraduate and postgraduate qualifications and professional certifications in nursing, education, leadership and management, simulation, project management and corporate governance. Donna is also the Board Chair at Jobs Queensland.

Special Responsibilities: Deputy Chairperson, (to 19 July 2022), Member - Governance and Remuneration Committee (to 19 July 2022)

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## DIRECTORS' REPORT

## Charles Robinson, B Env Sci, MBA, Grad Dip App Corp Gov, FGIA, GAICD

Charles has provided corporate governance and company secretarial services to organisations for over twenty years and is a Fellow of both the Governance Institute of Australia and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has extensive experience in assisting organisations achieve sustainable growth, with a particular emphasis on ensuring that the corporate governance aspects of the organisation are robust and promoting sound business practices.

### **Committee Memberships**

Governance and Remuneration Committee	Audit & Finance Committee	Clinical and Education Advisory Committee
Chairperson: Donna Bonney (to 19 July 2022)	Chairperson: Bob Beusekom (to 1 December 2021)	Chairperson: Gus Taddeo
Natalie Bain	Chairperson: Tania Hillman (from 9 December 2021)	Clare Maher
Christine Ip (to 31 March 2022)	Christine Ip	Clare Boothroyd
Shannon Foley (from 31 March 2022)	Chris Dougherty (from 31 March 2022)	Tamra Bridges (from 31 March 2022)

## **Directors' Meetings**

The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors and the of each Committee held during the year ended 30 June 2022, and the number of meetings attend by each director were:

	Directors'	meetings		f Finance nittee		nance nittee	Education	al and Advisory nittee
Director	Number eligible to attend	Number attended	Number eligible to attend	Number attended	Number eligible to attend	Number attended	Number eligible to attend	Number attended
Natalie Bain	12	10	-	-	4	4	-	-
Christine Ip	12	11	7	7	2	2	-	-
Gus Taddeo	12	12	3	3	-	-	3	2
Bob Beusekom	5	4	3	3	-	-	-	-
Tania Hillman	12	11	7	7	-	-	-	-
Donna Bonney	12	9	-	-	4	3	-	-
Clare Boothroyd	12	8	-	-	-	-	3	3
Clare Maher	12	10	-	-	-	-	3	2
Chris Dougherty	4	4	1	1	-	-	-	-
Shannon Foley	4	4	-	-	2	2	-	-
Tamra Bridges	4	2	-	-	-	-	-	-

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

### **OUR OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES**

#### The objectives of True are:

- To promote sexual and reproductive health and raise awareness to the public.
- To prevent ill-health in the area of sexual and reproductive health.
- To educate the public in respect to all issues relating to sexual and reproductive health.
- To provide clinical, education and training services to attain the objectives of True.
- To raise and secure sufficient funds for the advancement of the objectives of True.
  - To receive any funds and to distribute these funds in a manner that best attains the objectives of True; and
  - To do all things which are incidental or conducive to the attainment of all or any of the objects of True.

#### True's Strategic Pillars:

**Ensure AVAILABILITY True** strives to facilitate availability of all Reproductive and Sexual health clinical, education and counselling services through a highly trained workforce and the training of professional to maximise knowledge and capacity within local communities for substantial positive impact.

Foster ACCEPTABILITY True partners with Government and community stakeholders, customers and clients to co-design and develop acceptable services that continue to be respectful of diversity and inclusivity.

Maximise ACCESSIBILITY True continues to offer physically and economically accessible services to everyone through enabling technologies listening to customers and being responsive to community needs.

Promise QUALITY & EXCELLENCE True maintains a commitment to quality and excellence In all service offering, continuing to deliver superior expertise and achieve accreditation In all standards.

Focus on SUSTAINABILITY & GROWTH True strives towards economic viability allowing the sustainable delivery of our services and supporting investment in programme that service the community.

## True monitors the business by:

- Providing detailed briefs and outcome reports to the Board for review incorporating:
  - Board meetings are scheduled six times per year for consideration of operational governance, operational results and an annual calendar of events ensuring strategy review, risk review, investment review, and consideration of annual financial results and audit findings.
  - Audit & Finance Committee meetings are scheduled six times per year and an annual, external financial audit is completed.
  - The Board's Governance & Remuneration committee is scheduled to meet four times per year and examines corporate governance compliance and reports to the board.
  - The Board's Clinical & Education Advisory committee is scheduled to meet three times per year and examines clinical governance, clinical and education services to assess services delivered, quality controls, customer feedback, risk and compliance and makes recommendations to the board.
- Reviewing and analysing quarterly results against the annual operational plan which is aligned with True's strategic pillars and details key improvement projects, new services and cross functional activities.
- Meeting the requirements of the international standard ISO 9001:2015, the National Safety and Quality Health Service Standards (NSQHS) and the Human Services Quality Framework (HSQF) underpinned by an effective Quality Management System (QMS).
  - o ISO 9001:2015 This standard is based on several quality management principles including strong customer focus, the motivation and involvement of senior leaders, and a process approach based on continual improvement. The incorporation of this standard into

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

- the way of working helps to ensure that customers get consistent, excellent quality products and services.
- NSQHS provide a nationally uniform set of safety and quality measures across a wide range of health care services. They include evidence-based improvement strategies to bridge current and best practices, while ensuring effective customer engagement to improve client experience. True's Board, senior leadership team and clinical leads undertake training in the clinical governance standard, ensuring on a culture of continuous improvement.
- HSQF is the quality assurance framework used by the Department of Child Safety, Youth & Women; Department of Justice and Attorney General (the departments) for assessing and promoting improvement in the quality of human services. HSQF is particularly relevant to True's counselling services.
- Providing six-monthly performance reports for the Queensland Health, Department of Child Safety, Youth & Women and Department of Justice and Attorney General including quarterly statistics relating to funded services.
- Engagement with key stakeholders to seek feedback on activities
- Using reference or steering groups to oversee specific strategies of funded projects
- Monitoring of progress of the implementation of True's new 2021 2025 strategy aligned with Queensland's Human Rights Act 2019, to ensure the organisational direction is matching community need.
- Undertaking effective clinical governance and adherence to True's clinical practice guidelines.
- Seeking, monitoring and responding to customer feedback including both individual feedback and that from customer advisory groups and stakeholder advisory groups.
- Undertaking an effective risk management process including mitigation actions at organisational level and project level.
- Monitoring legislative requirements including those relating to clinical and education services.
- Monitoring compliance and risk through True's established Risk and Compliance management systems.
- Retain cybersecurity managed service provider to provide real time expert monitoring of data access and use on all cloud-based services and website.
- Maintaining a clinical incident reporting system.
- Confirming compliance with medical and nursing registrations.
- Engagement in and monitoring of social media activity.

### PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the company during the year were to provide sexual and reproductive education programmes and health and community gynaecology services in accordance with the Constitution, and to ensure all services were funded and professionally delivered.

## **REVIEW OF OPERATIONS**

- 1. It has been a very challenging year with disruptions occasioned by COVID-19 and flooding throughout Queensland. The performance of our employees in the face of these challenges has been outstanding and we recognise and appreciate their ongoing contribution to True.
- 2. Continued COVID-19 restrictions placed on our clinics took a toll on the organisation's ability to maintain profitable throughput. While clinic attendances broke new records at 24,002, the labour costs required to provide these services within this heightened COVID-19 environment along with higher personal leave by clinicians and more community cancellations because of illness, as well as the increased cost of personal protective equipment (PPE), meant that True made a substantial loss on the clinic side.
- 3. Within the reporting period, a significant wage shortfall was discovered. Almost \$999,074 shortfall in wages relating to our employees largely within Education and Counselling, and extending back to 2016 in some cases, was rectified with back payments to both current and former employees of that period. These amounts were paid out of operations cash holdings and

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### DIRECTORS' REPORT

did not result in any debt financing of drawdown of the future fund. With a new understanding of the costs of some of our services, particularly in the education sector, the difficult decision was made to restructure our operations resulting in a number of redundancies.

- 4. The Education team was impacted by flooding in Queensland with high number of cancellations from schools due to closures. The restriction of operations was also the cause of disruption late in the financial year resulting in postponement or cancellation of a number of training events.
- 5. True was successful in winning a major government grant of \$470,000 in our Multicultural team to provide health education and support to non-English speakers that enabled us to reach migrant and marginalised communities.
- 6. The Antenatal Syphillis Kit (ASK) is a Queensland Health funded project providing True with \$100,000 to educate and inform health professionals of syphilis and its effects during pregnancy and birth. It is hoped that the project will inform clinicians about the serious nature of syphilis and how this can be managed effectively for clients.
- 7. The Sexual Health Education project (aka Lady Peeps) has \$100,000 of funding from Queensland Health to educate the community about the risks of congenital syphilis. The project uses media channels to provide easy to understand information around this prevalent disease, how it can be acquired, and effective methods of treatment.
- 8. Victims Assist has provided the Cairns Sexual Assault Service with \$43,000 to establish and maintain a victim's support room in the centre. This will allow victims of sexual assault and violence to be better supported when giving a statement to the Queensland Police Service or any undertakings within the judicial system.
- 9. Increase in Checkup funding of \$125,000 enabled us to increase our service delivery reach making up for a reduction due to COVID-19 restrictions in the prior year, and to offset increased travel costs associated with COVID-19.
- 10. These new grants enabled the provision and delivery of services to Queenslanders at no cost to the service recipients and illustrate how True was able to deliver social outcomes through leveraging our reputation as well as the Queensland Women's Reproductive Health Service core grant.

The 2021/22 consolidated comprehensive income is a loss of \$2,038,754 (2021: surplus \$2,244,693). The consolidated operating loss of True RRH (parent entity) for its core business for the year ended 30 June 2022 was \$2,039,078. Curae P/L activities has been wound down and will be deregistered in 2022/23. It returned a surplus of \$324 for the year.

Total revenue for the Group reduced without Jobkeeper support this income year from \$12,949,615 to \$11,833,320.

WHRS Government grants indexation increased by \$92,660 only partly offsetting cost increases. Other Government grants increased by \$9,226 and other non-government grants decreased \$292. Fee for Service billings in Education and training decreased \$39,042 - a 7.76% decrease - and Clinic revenue increased \$277,113, a 21.93% increase over the prior year. There was also a \$8,225 decrease in sale of inventories. There is an increase of \$129,368 on Dividend and decrease in investment of \$460,381 income due to the stock market fall in June 2023.

Total Group expenditure increased from \$10,704,922 to \$13,872,072 compared to 2020/21. The main increases relate to increase in Labour costs, Personal Protective Equipment and Consumables.

## **FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS**

Family Planning Queensland t/a True Relationships & Reproductive Health (True) is positioned as the expert in reproductive and sexual health. It will continue to provide a wide range of clinical, counselling, and educational services in partnership with stakeholders such as the Federal Government, Queensland Government, hospitals, schools, charitable organisations, universities, and philanthropic funds.

True will continue to engage with funders, clients, stakeholders, and employees to seek feedback and continually improve service offerings and delivery. This feedback has been particularly important as True implements its new strategic plan for 2021 - 2025 supporting Government priorities and policies and True's aspiration of bringing services closer to Queensland's geographically dispersed population.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## DIRECTORS' REPORT

True's new strategic pillars align with Queensland's Human Rights Act 2019, supporting the Queensland Government's vision for a harmonious, united and inclusive Queensland.

True's high level strategic goals include:

- · access to and availability of True's clinical services within one hour's drive for 85% of Queenslanders
- 85% client satisfaction
- ongoing accreditation across all quality standards, and
- maintaining current and attracting new funding for True's programmes.

True's innovation fund has enabled True to invest in a four-year digital transformation project to enhance community outcomes, ensure True's long term sustainability, and increase market reach.

## MEMBERSHIP AND CATEGORIES

The two categories of membership of the company are: Individual or Organisational membership. Eligible members must be over 18 years of age.

#### **MEMBERSHIP GUARANTEE**

The liability of the Members is limited strictly to an obligation for each Member to contribute \$40, if demanded, to the assets of true if it is wound up while they are a Member, or within one year afterwards. Each member guarantees to make such payment if demanded.

#### **AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION**

The Independence Declaration of the lead auditor is included on page 11.

Signed in accordance with a Resolution of the Directors.

Ms Natalie Bain

Director

N Bain

Brisbane, 6 October 2022

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### **AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION**



Tel: +61 7 3237 5999 Fax: +61 7 3221 9227 www.bdo.com.au Level 10, 12 Creek Street Brisbane QLD 4000 GPO Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001 Australia

## DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY K L COLYER TO THE DIRECTORS OF FAMILY PLANNING QUEENSLAND

As lead auditor of Family Planning Queensland for the year ended 30 June 2022, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been:

- 1. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of section 60-40 of the *Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Act 2012* in relation to the audit; and
- 2. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Family Planning Queensland and the entities it controlled during the period.

K L Colyer Director

**BDO Audit Pty Ltd** 

Brisbane, 6 October 2022

Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	NOTE	2022	2021
		\$	\$
Revenue	2	11,835,047	12,949,615
Employee benefits expense		(9,589,840)	(7,745,439)
Staff associated costs		(277,882)	(276,516)
Consultancy costs		(632,763)	(390,484)
Client support and information		(57,549)	(95,017)
Accommodation costs		(192,828)	(190,994)
Materials and consumables		(380,418)	(505,161)
Depreciation and amortisation expense	2(ii)	(938,239)	(913,829)
Loss on disposal/sale of non-current assets		(65,229)	(5,393)
Gain/(loss) in changes in fair value of financial assets		(395,152)	735,372
Other expenses	2(ii)	(1,343,901)	(1,317,461)
Surplus/(Deficit) before income tax	_	(2,038,754)	2,244,693
Income Tax expense	1(b)	-	-
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year		(2,038,754)	2,244,693
Other Comprehensive income			
Item that will not be reclassified to profit and loss:			
Change in fair value of land and buildings		-	108,316
Total Other Comprehensive Income			108,316
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss)		(2,038,754)	2,353,009

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Trade and other receivables       4       78,468       25,8         Inventories       32,723       52,8         Other current assets       5       170,144       180,5         TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       1,625,290       4,005,5         NON CURRENT ASSETS       7       1,625,290       1,258,5         Property, plant and equipment       6       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4		NOTE	2022	2021
Cash and cash equivalents       3       1,343,955       3,746,2         Trade and other receivables       4       78,468       25,8         Inventories       32,723       52,8         Other current assets       5       170,144       180,5         TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       1,625,290       4,005,5         NON CURRENT ASSETS       7       1,675,290       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4			\$	\$
Trade and other receivables       4       78,468       25,8         Inventories       32,723       52,8         Other current assets       5       170,144       180,5         TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       1,625,290       4,005,5         NON CURRENT ASSETS       7       1,625,290       1,258,5         Property, plant and equipment       6       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4	T ASSETS			
Inventories       32,723       52,8         Other current assets       5       170,144       180,5         TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       1,625,290       4,005,5         NON CURRENT ASSETS       7       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4	d cash equivalents	3	1,343,955	3,746,283
Other current assets       5       170,144       180,5         TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       1,625,290       4,005,5         NON CURRENT ASSETS       7       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4	nd other receivables	4	78,468	25,874
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS         1,625,290         4,005,5           NON CURRENT ASSETS         7         1,059,399         1,258,5           Property, plant and equipment         6         1,059,399         1,258,5           Right-of-use assets         7         1,675,259         2,322,0           Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss         8         5,333,876         4,356,9           Term Deposits         344,239         339,4           Intangible assets         9         227,064         200,9           TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS         8,639,837         8,477,9           TOTAL ASSETS         10,265,127         12,483,4	ies		32,723	52,809
NON CURRENT ASSETS  Property, plant and equipment 6 1,059,399 1,258,5 Right-of-use assets 7 1,675,259 2,322,0 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 5,333,876 4,356,9 Term Deposits 344,239 339,4 Intangible assets 9 227,064 200,9 TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 8,639,837 8,477,9 TOTAL ASSETS 10,265,127 12,483,4	irrent assets	5	170,144	180,559
Property, plant and equipment       6       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4	CURRENT ASSETS	_	1,625,290	4,005,525
Property, plant and equipment       6       1,059,399       1,258,5         Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4	RRFNT ASSFTS			
Right-of-use assets       7       1,675,259       2,322,0         Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4		6	1,059,399	1,258,554
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss       8       5,333,876       4,356,9         Term Deposits       344,239       339,4         Intangible assets       9       227,064       200,9         TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS       8,639,837       8,477,9         TOTAL ASSETS       10,265,127       12,483,4				2,322,079
Intangible assets         9         227,064         200,9           TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS         8,639,837         8,477,9           TOTAL ASSETS         10,265,127         12,483,4		8		4,356,938
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS         8,639,837         8,477,9           TOTAL ASSETS         10,265,127         12,483,4	posits		344,239	339,427
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS         8,639,837         8,477,9           TOTAL ASSETS         10,265,127         12,483,4		9	227,064	200,931
	ON CURRENT ASSETS	_		8,477,929
CURRENT LIABILITIES	ASSETS	_	10,265,127	12,483,454
CURRENT LIABILITIES	T LIABILITIES			
Trade and other payables 10 1,236,221 917,1	nd other payables	10	1,236,221	917,113
Contract liabilities - deferred income 520,541 436,8	liabilities - deferred income		520,541	436,833
Lease liabilities 11 667,274 638,5	abilities	11	667,274	638,570
Provisions 12 1,187,685 1,127,6	าร	12	1,187,685	1,127,676
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,611,721 3,120,1	CURRENT LIABILITIES	_	3,611,721	3,120,192
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	RRENT LIABILITIES			
Provisions 12 43,607 70,5	ns	12	43,607	70,512
Lease liabilities 11 1,162,974 1,807,1	abilities	11	1,162,974	1,807,171
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,206,581 1,877,6	ON-CURRENT LIABILITIES	_	1,206,581	1,877,683
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,818,302 4,997,8	LIABILITIES	_	4,818,302	4,997,875
NET ASSETS 5,446,825 7,485,5	ETS	_	5,446,825	7,485,579
EQUITY				
Accumulated Surplus 13 5,338,509 7,377,2	ated Surplus	13	5,338,509	7,377,263
		13	·	108,316
TOTAL EQUITY 5,446,825 7,485,5	:QUITY	_	5,446,825	7,485,579

Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	Accumulated	D	Tatal
	Surplus	Reserves	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Balance at 1 July 2020	5,132,570	-	5,132,570
Total comprehensive income for the year			
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year	2,244,693	-	2,244,693
Other comprehensive income	-	108,316	108,316
Total comprehensive income	2,244,693	108,316	2,353,009
Balance at 30 June 2021	7,377,263	108,316	7,485,579
Total comprehensive income for the year:			
Surplus / (Deficit) for the year	(2,038,754)	-	(2,038,754)
Other comprehensive income	-	-	-
Total comprehensive income	(2,038,754)	-	(2,038,754)
Balance at 30 June 2022	5,338,509	108,316	5,446,825

Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

	NOTE	2022	2021
			\$
Cash flows from operating activities:			
Receipts from customers		2,074,624	2,132,047
Receipts from grants		9,543,006	10,720787
Dividends received		251,189	121,821
Interest received		641	3,969
Interest paid on lease liabilities	11	(92,558)	(96,304)
Payments to suppliers and employees		(11,994,449)	(10,411,733
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	17 (b)	(217,547)	2,470,587
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Payments for plant, property and equipment		(77,855)	(283,538)
Payments for intangibles		(13,023)	(175,056)
Proceeds from sale of Investments		515,786	446,619
Purchase of Investments		(1,963,911)	(539,785)
Net cash used in investing activities	<u>-</u>	(1,539,003)	(551,760)
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from/(payments of) borrowings		-	-
Payments of lease liabilities	11	(645,778)	(629,324)
Net cash used in financing	- -	(645,778)	(629,324)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held		(2,402,328)	1,289,503
Cash at beginning of the financial year		3,746,283	2,456,780
Cash at the end of the financial year	17 (a)	1,343,955	3,746,283

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022.

Family Planning Queensland is a public company limited by guarantee, incorporated and domiciled in Australia, and is a not-for-profit entity for the purposes of preparing the financial statements. The consolidated financial statements are for the consolidated entity consisting of Family Planning Queensland (Company) and its subsidiaries and together are referred to as the Group.

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution by the Directors on 6 October 2022.

## **NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES**

#### **Basis of Preparation**

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the Australian Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. The company is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

#### (a) Principles of consolidation

The general purpose consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of the parent (Family Planning Queensland) and all of the subsidiaries (including any structured entities). Subsidiaries are entities the parent controls. The parent controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. A list of the subsidiaries is provided in Note 21.

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financial statements of the Group from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The consolidation of a subsidiary is discontinued from the date that control ceases. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between group entities are fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity of the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

#### (b) Income tax

The Company's income is exempt from tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act (as amended). The subsidiaries within the Group, are not exempt from tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act (as amended).

## (c) Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current financial year.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

#### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT)

#### (d) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The Directors' estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report are based on historical results and the best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic data from internal and external sources.

## (e) New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, have not been early adopted by the group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2022. The company assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations most relevant to the company is not material.

## (f) Fair Values

Fair values may be used for financial asset and liability measurement as well as for sundry disclosures.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is based on the presumption that the transaction takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to, or by, the Company.

#### (g) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Directors review the carrying value of the Company's tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 2: SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

#### (i) Revenue and Other Income

Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15	<b>5):</b>	2022 \$	2021 \$
Grant revenue		*	*
Government grants	(ii)	2,560,091	2,550,865
Other grants	(ii)	615,350	615,642
Sales:			
Sales - pharmacy	(i)	1,895	1,866
Sales - other	(i)	24,542	27,241
Sales - resources & publications	(i)	43,336	48,891
Services:			
Education and training	(ii)	469,615	508,657
Clinic revenue	(ii)	1,540,211	1,263,098
Total revenue from contracts with customers		5,255,040	5,061,260
Income of not-for-profit entities (AASB 1058):			
Government grants		6,292,791	7,793,769
Other income:			
Interest received - other persons		641	3,969
Donations and sponsorships		1,516	1,879
Dividend income		251,189	121,821
Other income		33,870	11,917
Total other income		287,216	139,586
Total Revenue and Other Income		11,835,047	12,949,615

- (i) The group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services at a point in time.
- (ii) The group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time.

## Revenue recognition

### Revenue from contracts with customers

The company applies AASB 15 to recognise revenue when an agreement is enforceable and contains performance obligations to transfer goods or services that are sufficiently specific to determine when the obligation has been satisfied. For an arrangement that is not within the scope of AASB 15, and not otherwise within the scope of other standards, it would be treated as contribution income under AASB 1058 (for example a cash donation without conditions).

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company is expected to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the company: identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the customer of the goods or services promised.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 2: SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (continued)

#### (i) Revenue and Other Income (continued)

Variable consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to the customer such as discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent events. Such estimates are determined using either the 'expected value' or 'most likely amount' method. The measurement of variable consideration is subject to a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur. The measurement constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounts received that are subject to the constraining principle are recognised as a refund liability.

#### Contract assets and liabilities

AASB 15 uses the terms 'contract asset' and 'contract liability' to describe what is commonly known as 'accrued revenue' and 'deferred revenue'. Contract assets are balances due from customers under contracts as work is performed and therefore a contract asset is recognised over the period in which the performance obligation is fulfilled. This represents the entity's right to consideration for the services transferred to date. Amounts are generally reclassified to receivables when these have been certified or invoiced to a customer. Contract liabilities arise where payment is received prior to work being performed.

#### Grant revenue

Revenue from grants received under enforceable agreements, where there are sufficiently specific performance obligations imposed, is deferred in the statement of financial position as a 'contract liability' until the obligations are satisfied. If the performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, revenue will be recognised immediately under AASB 1058 when the company obtains control of the cash.

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before the company is eligible to retain the contribution, the grant will be recognised in the statement of financial position as a 'contract liability' until those conditions are satisfied.

#### Sales

Sale of goods usually contains only one performance obligation, with revenue recognised at the point in time when the material is transferred to the customer. The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is due when the goods have been transferred to the customer.

#### Revenue from rendering services

Revenue from the rendering of a services (such as provision of education and training) is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the client.

#### Interest

Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

#### Dividend

Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive a dividend is established.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST).

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 2: SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (continued)

(ii) Charging as expenses	Note	2022	2021
Cost of sales		40,832	50,364
Amortisation: - Software Systems	9	51,722	42,555
- Right of use assets Total amortisation		674,339 726,061	665,467 708,022
Depreciation of non-current assets: - Freehold buildings and Leasehold improvements - Plant and equipment		101,998 110,180	92,957 112,850
Total depreciation	6	212,178	205,807
Total depreciation and amortisation		938,239	913,829
Included in Other expenses:			
- Computer expenses		558,448	532,965
- Advertising and promotion		86,477	157,661
- Telecommunication costs		129,356	130,446
- Insurance		145,555	108,074
- Cleaning		134,907	106,052
- Interest expense		92,558	96,304
- Other expenses		196,600	185,959
Total other expenses		1,343,901	1,317,461

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## **NOTE 3: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS**

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash at bank	1,340,075	3,742,553
Cash on hand	3,880	3,730
	1,343,955	3,746,283

#### NOTE 4: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

The consolidated entity has applied the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on days overdue.

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Trade Debtors	78,468	25,874
Less: provision for impairment	<u> </u>	-
	78,468	25,874

The carrying amounts of trade debtors are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

#### **NOTE 5: OTHER CURRENT ASSETS**

Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

2022	2021
\$	\$
163,074	165,378
3,136	10,991
3,934	4,190
170,144	180,559
	\$ 163,074 3,136 3,934

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Each class of property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at cost. Where an item of property, plant or equipment is acquired for no or nominal consideration, the item's fair value at acquisition date is deemed as its cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, each class is carried at cost or fair value, less where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated as the revalued amount of the asset. A revaluation surplus is credited to other comprehensive income (asset revaluation surplus) unless it reverses a revaluation decrease on the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss unless it directly offsets a previous revaluation surplus on the same asset in the asset revaluation surplus. On disposal, any revaluation surplus relating to sold assets is transferred to retained earnings. Independent valuations are performed regularly to ensure that the carrying amounts of land and buildings does not differ materially from that the fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses. At each reporting date, the Directors review a number of factors affecting property, plant and equipment, including their carrying values, to determine if these assets, grouped into cash-generating units, may be impaired. If an impairment indicator exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's 'fair value less costs to sell' and 'value in use', is compared to the carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as an impairment expense.

As the future economic benefits of the company's assets are not primarily dependent on their ability to generate net cash inflows, and if deprived of the asset, the company would replace the asset's remaining future economic benefits, 'value in use' is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of the asset, rather than by using discounted future cash flows.

## Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land, is either depreciated on a straightline basis or diminishing value over their useful lives to the company commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Useful life for classes of assets held ranges as follows:

Building 5 - 40 years
Plant and equipment 3 - 12 years
Motor Vehicles 5 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each sheet balance sheet date.

The gain or loss on disposal of all fixed assets is determined as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the proceeds of disposal and is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the year of disposal. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Land & Buildings		
Leasehold improvements - at cost	589,100	589,100
Cairns Freehold Land and Building - at fair value	600,000	600,000
	1,189,100	1,189,100
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(428,250)	(326,252)
Total Land and Buildings	760,850	862,848
Plant & Equipment		
Cost	786,971	773,948
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(557,293)	(457,498)
Total Plant & Equipment	229,678	316,450
Motor Vehicles		
Cost	118,809	118,809
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(49,938)	(39,553)
Total Motor Vehicles	68,871	79,256
Summary - All assets		
At cost	1,494,880	1,481,857
At fair value	600,000	600,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(1,035,481)	(823,303)
Written down value	1,059,399	1,258,554

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 6: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Movement in the carrying amounts between the beginning and the end of the financial year for property plant and equipment.

2022	Land and buildings \$	Plant and equipment \$	Motor Vehicle \$	Total \$
Balance at the beginning of year	862,848	316,450	79,256	1,258,554
Additions	-	13,023	-	13,023
Transfers	-	-	-	-
Disposals	-	-	-	-
Depreciation and impairment expense	(101,998)	(99,795)	(10,385)	(212,178)
Carrying amount at the end of the year	760,850	229,678	68,871	1,059,399
2021	Land and buildings \$	Plant and equipment \$	Motor Vehicle \$	Total \$
Balance at the beginning of year	740,943	316,375	23,256	1,080,574
Additions	67,553	164,803	70,601	302,957
Transfers	41,669	(61,088)	-	(19,419)
Disposals	(2,676)	(797)	(4,594)	(8,067)
Revaluation	108,316	-	-	108,316
Depreciation and impairment expense	(92,957)	(102,843)	(10,007)	(205,807)
Carrying amount at the end of the year	862,848	316,450	79,256	1,258,554

#### **NOTE 7: RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS**

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the entity expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Group has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss as incurred.

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Right-of-use assets	3,666,706	3,636,420
Less: Accumulated depreciation	(1,991,447)	(1,314,341)
	1,675,259	2,322,079

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

#### Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Fund has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

#### Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)\*
- Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)
- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss\*.

## Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes receivables. Refer to Note 4 for further details.

## Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss based on the exit price as reported by the managers of the trusts.

<sup>\*</sup>These are the financial assets most relevant to the Group.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 8: FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

#### Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Fund's statement of financial position) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
- The Group's has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss	5,333,876	4,356,938

#### **NOTE 9: INTANGIBLES**

Development costs that are directly attributable to software products are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

- it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use;
- management intends to complete the software and use or sell it;
- it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits; and
- the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is ready for use. Amortisation period is 3 - 5 years.

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Software Systems	529,158	301,368
Less: Accumulated amortisation	(302,094)	(250,372)
Written down value	227,064	50,996
Work in progress - Best Practice	<u> </u>	149,935
Total	227,064	200,931

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022.

## NOTE 9: INTANGIBLES (continued)

	2022	2021
Movement in Carrying Amounts:	<b>Ş</b>	ş
Balance at the beginning of year	200,931	68,430
Additions	77,855	175,056
Disposals	-	-
Depreciation and impairment expense	(51,722)	(42,555)
Carrying amount at the end of the year	227,064	200,931

#### NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the year-end and which are unpaid. These amounts are unsecured and have 30-60 day payment terms.

	2022	2021
Unsecured liabilities:	\$	\$
Trade Creditors	88,330	119,941
Goods and services tax liability	220,103	113,510
Employee tax	198,136	101,876
Other creditors and accrued expenses	729,652	581,786
	1,236,221	917,113

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

#### **NOTE 11: LEASE LIABILITIES**

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the entity's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## **NOTE 11: LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)**

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
As at 1 July 2021	2,445,741	2,174,111
New lease during the year	-	287,919
Modification on the lease	30,286	613,035
Accretion of interest	92,558	96,304
Payment of interest	(92,558)	(96,304)
Payments of principal	(645,778)	(629,324)
	1,830,248	2,445,741
Current	667,274	638,570
Non-current	1,162,974	1,807,171
Total lease liabilities	1,830,248	2,445,741

#### **NOTE 12: PROVISIONS**

Provision is made for the Group's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date as follows:

## Short-term employee benefits provisions

Provision is made for the Group's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs.

## Long-term employee benefits provisions

The Group's net obligation in respect of long-term service benefits, other than obligations under the Group's defined benefits superannuation fund, is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations.

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Provisions - Current	*	*
Employee benefits:		
- Annual leave	758,211	593,445
- Long service leave	429,474	526,774
- Other	-	7,457
	1,187,685	1,127,676
Provisions - Non-Current		
Long-term employee benefits	43,607	70,512
Total provisions	1,231,292	1,198,188

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## **NOTE 13: ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AND RESERVES**

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Accumulated Surplus	•	·
Accumulated Surplus at the beginning of the year	7,377,263	5,132,570
Surplus/(deficit) for the year	(2,038,754)	2,244,693
Transfer from reserves	-	-
Accumulated Surplus at the end of the financial year	5,338,509	7,377,263
Asset Revaluation Reserve		
Balance at the beginning of the year	108,316	-
Transfer to accumulated surpluses	-	108,316
Balance at the end of the financial year	108,316	108,316

## **NOTE 14: AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION**

During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by BDO Audit Pty Limited, the auditor of the company, and its network firms:

Audit services:	2022 \$	2021 \$
Audit and preparation of the financial statements	46,000	41,500
Addit and preparation of the financial statements	40,000	41,300
Auditing grant acquittals	14,270	13,700
Other services:		
Tax compliance services	4,500	3,730
Jobkeeper assistance	<u>-</u>	44,287
Total remuneration	64,770	103,217

## NOTE 15: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

	Salary & Fees	Superannuation	Non-cash Benefits	Total
	\$	\$	\$	\$
2022	703,827	59,487	72,059	835,374
2021	657,614	61,673	71,379	790,666

Non-director members of Family Planning Queensland Key Management Personnel during 2021-2022 are:

Employee Name	Position Held
Alice Evans	Chief Executive Officer (CEO) (resigned 23/09/22)
Dominic Taylor	General Manager Commercial
Ronan Sweeney	Manager Education (resigned 04/11/21)
Sharon Stokell	GM - Operations
Rachael Keech	General Manager Corporate Service (started 21/03/22)
Svend Kling	General Manager - Business Services (resigned 12/11/2021)
Bob Van Beusekom	General Manager - Business Services (temporary- Dec 2021 to April 2022)

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 15: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION (continued)

Under the Group's Constitution no Director is permitted to receive fees or a salary from the Group. The names of the Group Directors who have held office during the financial year are:

Natalie Bain Clare Maher

Bob Van Beusekom (resigned 1 December 2021) Christine Ip

Giuseppe Taddeo Chris Dougherty (app

Giuseppe Taddeo Chris Dougherty (appointed 31 March 2022)
Donna Bonney (resigned 19 July 2022) Shannon Foley (appointed 31 March 2022
Clare Boothroyd Tamara Bridges (appointed 31 March 2022)

Tania Hillman

#### NOTE 16: FUNDING OF OPERATIONS

The Group is economically dependent upon funding from the Queensland State Government. As detailed in Note 2, this income amounted to \$9,468,232 for the year ended 30 June 2022 (2021: \$9,366,638). The Directors are confident that there is not likely to be any material change in State Government funding in the foreseeable future with Funding agreements in place through to 30th June 2022.

## **NOTE 17: CASH FLOW STATEMENTS**

### (a) Reconciliation of Cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and cash at bank. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

	2022	2021
	\$	\$
Cash on hand	46,688	50,045
Cash at bank	3,880	3,730
Cash on deposit	1,293,387	3,692,508
Cash Flows Presented on a Net Basis	1,343,955	3,746,283

Cash flows arising from deposits in and withdrawals from savings, money market and other deposits are presented on a net basis in the Statement of Cash Flows.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE 17: CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (continued)

## (b) Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Operating Surplus/(Deficit)

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Operating surplus/(Loss)	(2,038,754)	2,244,693
Net (Profit)/Loss on sale of assets including impairments	65,228	(14,089)
Change in fair value of financial asset through profit or loss	405,958	(704,217)
Non-cash flows in operating result:		
Amortisation	728,828	708,022
Depreciation	212,178	205,807
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
(Increase)/decrease in receivables	(49,295)	31,041
(Increase)/decrease in stock	20,086	(8,095)
(Increase)/decrease in other assets	2,304	228,758
Increase/(decrease) in payables	319,108	(232,847)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities	83,708	(239,489)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions	33,104	251,003
Cash flows provided by/(used in) operations	(217,547)	2,470,587

#### **NOTE 18: MEMBERS' GUARANTEE**

The Group is limited by guarantee. If the Group is wound up, the constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of \$40 towards meeting any outstanding obligations of the Group. At 30 June 2022 the number of members was 70.

#### **NOTE 19: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS**

#### **Overall Policies**

#### Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. For the Group, this arises on cash balances and term deposit investments.

Interest rate risk is managed by maintaining a term deposit for a relevant term to achieve the highest possible interest rate. No specific financial instruments such as interest rate hedges are considered necessary for the Group's bank debt as the exposure to risk is not considered material.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022.

## NOTE 19: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

#### Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. For the Group this arises from exposures to customers. The Group does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under financial instruments entered into by the association.

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised financial assets, is the carrying amount of trade and other receivables, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements.

Credit risk is managed and reviewed regularly by the board of directors through the Group's Audit and Finance Committee and the CEO.

### Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may encounter difficulties raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments.

It is the policy of the Board of Directors that the Group maintains adequate cash reserves so as to meet financial commitments when required.

The Group manages liquidity risk by regularly monitoring actual cash flows and long term forecasted cash flows.

## Investment Portfolio

An investment portfolio of \$3,000,000 was established on 1 July 2015 and is managed by Perpetual Trustee's pursuant to a Board Investment Policy. Both capital growth and investment income will be reinvested into the fund annually and it is the Board's intent that this become a future fund to support the objects of Family Planning Queensland.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## NOTE: 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial instrument maturity analysis

	Interest	bearing	Non-Interest	Bearing	Total	
	2022	2021	2022	2021	2022	2021
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
Financial assets - Amortised Cost						
Cash at	1,340,075	3,742,553	-	-	1,340,075	3,742,553
Cash on Hand	-	-	3,880	3,730	3,880	3,730
Trade and Other Receivables	-	-	78,468	25,874	78,468	25,874
Term Deposits	344,239	339,427	-	-	344,239	339,427
Total financial assets - Amortised Cost	1,684,314	4,081,980	82,348	29,604	1,766,662	4,111,584
Financial Assets - Fair value through profit or loss						
Investments	209,177	248,688	5,124,700	4,108,249	5,333,876	4,356,938
Total Financial Assets - Fair Value through profit or loss	209,177	248,688	5,124,700	4,108,249	5,333,876	4,356,938
Financial liabilities - Amortised Cost						
Trade and Other Payables	-	-	1,236,223	917,113	1,236,223	1,242,113
Borrowings			-	<u> </u>	-	-
Total financial liabilities - Amortised Cost	-	<u> </u>	1,236,223	917,113	1,236,223	1,242,113

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022.

## NOTE: 19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

#### Financial instrument maturity analysis

The table below reflects the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments of a fixed period of maturity, as well as management's expectations of the settlement period for all other financial instruments. As such, the amounts may not reconcile to the statement of financial position.

Trade and sundry payables are expected to be paid as follows:	2022	2021
Trade payables	\$	\$
Less than 6 months	88,330	119,941
6 months to 1 year		
	88,330	119,941
Sundry payables		
Less than 6 months	1,147,891	797,172
6 months to 1 year		
	1,147,891	797,172
Bank loans are expected to be paid as follows:  Bank loans		
Less than 1 year	-	-
One to Two years		
		-

#### Market risk

Market risk arises from the use of interest bearing and tradeable financial instruments. It is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates (interest rate risk), and other market factors (other price risk).

The Group invests in publicly traded investments and in doing so it exposes itself to the fluctuations in price that are inherent in such a market. Any investment decisions must be approved by the board. To limit its market risk, the Group holds a diversified portfolio and the Board makes investment decisions on advice from professional advisors.

#### Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

No sensitivity analysis has been performed for interest rate risk, as the effect of the interest rate fluctuations on the cash balances are considered not material.

#### Other price risk

A movement in market prices of 5% would affect net equity on the Group by approximately \$266,694 being the balance of investments of \$5,333,876 at 30 June 2022.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## **NOTE 20: FAIR VALUE**

Land and buildings and investments are recognised and measured at fair value on a recurring basis. There are no assets or liabilities which are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

#### Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed are categorised according to the fair value hierarchy as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.
- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
- Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Recognised fair value measurements.

The following table sets out the consolidated entity's assets and liabilities that are measured and recognised at fair value in the financial statements.

	Level 1 \$	Level 2 \$	Level 3 \$	Total \$
2022				
Investments	5,333,876	-	-	5,333,876
Land and Buildings	-	-	600,000	600,000
2021				
Investments	4,356,938	-	-	4,356,938
Land and Buildings	-	-	600,000	600,000

Valuation processes for Level 3 fair values

The entity engages an external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Group's property every 3 years.

#### **NOTE 21: INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES**

The Group's subsidiaries that were controlled during the year and prior year are set out below:

Subsidiaries	Principal place of business / Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned (			
		2022	2021	
Curae Technology Pty Ltd	Australia	100%	100%	
Curae Technology Holdings Pty Ltd	Australia	100%	100%	

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health"

## NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

#### **NOTE 22: PARENT DISCLOSURES**

The parent and ultimate parent entity within the Group is Family Planning Queensland.

## (a) Summary financial information

The individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregated amounts as follows:

	2022 \$	2021 \$
Current assets	1,963,807	4,338,046
Non-current assets	8,295,599	8,138,502
Total assets	10,259,406	12,476,548
Current liabilities	2,511,631	2,016,396
Non-current liabilities	2,306,675	2,979,973
Total liabilities	4,818,306	4,996,369
Net Assets	5,441,100	7,480,179
Accumulated surplus	2,451,867	4,490,945
Reserves	2,989,234	2,989,234
Total equity	5,441,100	7,480,179
Surplus/(deficit) for the year	(2,039,078)	1,934,813
Total comprehensive income for the year	(2,039,078)	1,934,813

#### (b) Guarantees

The parent entity has not provided any guarantees to third parties in relation to the obligations of controlled entities.

## (c) Contractual commitments

There were no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment entered into by the parent entity at 30 June 2022 (2021: \$Nil).

### (d) Contingent liabilities

The parent entity has no contingent liabilities at reporting date (2021: \$Nil).

#### (e) Recognition and measurement

The financial information for the parent entity has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements, except as set out below:

## (f) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are accounted for at cost in the financial statements of Family Planning Queensland.

## Trading as "true relationships & reproductive health" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

## **NOTE 23: COMPANY INFORMATION**

Registered office and principal place of business of the Group is:

• 230 Lutwyche Road, Windsor, Qld, 4030.

## NOTE 24: EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On 28 August 2022 Curae Technology Holdings Pty Ltd and Curae Technology Pty Ltd were both deregistered with the Australian Securities & Investments Commission (ASIC).

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since year end date that has significantly affected, or may significantly affect the company's operations, the results of those operations, or the company's state of affairs in future financial years.

## **DIRECTORS' DECLARATION**

The Directors of Family Planning Queensland declare that:

- The financial statements, comprising the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated statement of changes in equity, and accompanying notes, are in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC) Act 2012 and:
  - a. Comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013; and
  - b. Give a true and fair view of the entity's financial position as at 30 June 2022 and of its performance for the year ended on that date.
- 2. In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the entity will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Directors.

On behalf of the Directors by:

Ms Natalie Bain

N Bain

Director

Brisbane, 6 October 2022



Fax: +61 7 3221 9227 www.bdo.com.au

Level 10, 12 Creek Street Brisbane QLD 4000 GPO Box 457 Brisbane QLD 4001 Australia

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Family Planning Queensland

## Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

#### Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Family Planning Queensland (the registered entity) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial report, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the responsible entities' declaration.

In our opinion the accompanying financial report of Family Planning Queensland, is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including:

- Giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2022 and of its (i) financial performance for the year then ended; and
- (ii) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

#### Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act) and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

#### Other information

Those charged with governance are responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this auditor's report is information included in the Directors' Report, but does not include the financial report and our auditor's report thereon.



Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

## Responsibilities of Directors for the Financial Report

The directors of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the ACNC Act, and for such internal control as the responsible entities determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, responsible entities are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the responsible entities either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the registered entity's financial reporting process.

## Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website (<a href="http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx">http://www.auasb.gov.au/Home.aspx</a>) at:

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors\_responsibilities/ar3.pdf

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

**BDO Audit Pty Ltd** 

K L Colyer

Director

RDO

Brisbane, 6 October 2022